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Joint Courts Complex Project 



The Joint Courts Complex project area in 
downtown Tucson.



Project Site: 4.2 acres at the northeast corner of Stone Avenue and Alameda Street, bounded by Toole 
Avenue on the north. 

Joint Courts Complex 
Building Size: 350,000 square feet in total area. The court building as currently planned will be eight 
stories tall.

Parking Garage: On-site garage parking as planned will accommodate approximately 1,200 vehicles.

Schedule:

Project is currently nearing completion of the 
programming (functional needs assessment) 
phase and site master planning. Building design 
is planned to start later this fall and is expected 
to be complete by late 2007. Construction of the 
court complex is expected to be complete by late 
2010.

Historical Cemetery Background: 

This site was used as Tucson’s first cemetery 
from about 1860 to 1875 following the United 
States’ acquisition of southern Arizona. It was 
the direct successor of the cemetery inside the 
Tucson Presidio. It was used by the soldiers 
stationed at Camp Lowell and by the general 
population of Tucson and was known as the 
“National Cemetery” or “Government Ceme-
tery.” There were actually two adjacent cemeter-
ies on the site—one for the military and a larger 
cemetery for civilians.

The City of Tucson closed the cemetery in 1875 
in anticipation of the coming of the railroad 
and the sale of the cemetery land for residential 
and commercial uses. The same year, the city 
opened the Court Street Cemetery at Stone 
Avenue and Speedway Boulevard. In 1881, the 
city directed that all burials be removed from the 
National Cemetery and re-interred at the Court 
Street Cemetery. However, many burials were 
not removed before the land was subdivided 
and developed.

Treatment of Human Burials: 

Burial records kept by the Catholic Diocese of 
Tucson and other records suggest that as many 
as 1,800–2,000 people—the majority of Hispanic 
descent—were interred in the National Cemetery. 
Although virtually no documentation of the place-
ment of graves in the cemetery exists, Pima County 
anticipates that both intact and disturbed burials 
will be encountered; therefore, archaeological 
excavations will be conducted throughout the site 
before construction begins.

To ensure the respectful and sensitive treatment of 
human remains in accordance with the wishes of 
descendant groups, and to ensure compliance with 
state laws concerning burials, Pima County and 
the Arizona State Museum have consulted with the 
Catholic Diocese of Tucson; descendant groups, 
such as Los Descendientes del Presidio de Tucson; 
tribal groups; and others to prepare a plan for the 
treatment and identification of the burials. Burials 
will either be repatriated to a specific descendant 
group or re-interred at All Faiths Cemetery in 
Tucson. Two Burial Agreements have been signed. 
One agreement covers burials predating the es-
tablishment of the Tucson Presidio in 1775; these 
burials will be repatriated to the Tohono O’odham 
Nation. The second agreement covers all post-1775 
burials and involves multiple descendant groups.

Archaeological excavations will begin later this fall 
2006.
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El sitio del proyecto: 4.2 acres en la esquina noreste de la Avenida Stone y la Calle Alameda, con la 
Avenida Toole al norte.

El edificio Joint Courts Complex: 
Tamaño del edificio: 350,000 pies cuadrados de área en total. Según el plan actual, el edificio de 
juzgado será de ocho pisos.

Estacionamiento: El sitio tendrá garaje de estacionamiento para acomodar aproximadamente 
1,200 vehículos.

Programa:

La fase de planeamiento preliminar para el 
proyecto (evaluación de necesidades funcionales) 
y el planeamiento integrado para el sitio están 
casi finalizados. El diseño del edificio comenzará 
este otoño y se espera finalizarlo a fines de 2007. 
Se anticipa que la construcción del Joint Courts 
Complex será finalizada a fines de 2010.

Antecedentes históricos del Cementerio 
Nacional:

Este sitio fue usado desde alrededor de 1860 
hasta 1875, y fue el primer cementerio de Tucson 
después que el sur de Arizona fue incorporado 
como parte de los Estados Unidos. Era el sucesor 
directo del cementerio del Presidio de Tucson. 
Fue usado por el ejército estadounidense, basado 
en Camp Lowell, y también por la población civil 
de Tucson. Era conocido como el Cementerio 
Nacional o el Cementerio del Gobierno. En 
realidad, habían dos cementerios contiguos en el 
sitio—uno para los militares, y otro más grande 
para la población civil.
	
	 La Ciudad de Tucson cerró el cementerio en 
1875 anticipadamente a la llegada del ferrocarril 
y la venta de terrenos en el cementerio para des- 
arollo residencial y comercial. En el mismo año, 
la ciudad inauguró el Cementerio Court Street, 
ubicado en la esquina sudoeste de la Avenida 
Stone y el Bulevar Speedway. En 1881, la 
ciudad ordenó que se deberián exhumar todo 
los entierros en el Cementerio Nacional para 
enterrarlos de nuevo en el Cementerio Court 
Street. Sin embargo, muchos entierros no fueron 
exhumados antes que el cementerio fue parcelado 
y desarollado.

El tratamiento de entierros humanos:

Registros de entierros mantenidos por la diócesis 
católica de Tucson y otros documentos sugieren 
que el número de entierros en el Cementerio 
Nacional puede haber alcanzado 1,800–2,000 
personas, la mayoría de descendencia hispánica. 
Aunque casi no existe constancia  que pueda 
comprobar la distribución de entierros en el 
cementerio, Pima County lo considera probable 
que puedan haber entierros en el área, tantos 
intactos como perturbados. Se ejecutará una 
excavación arqueológica completa del área del 
proyecto antes de comenzar con la construcción.
	
	 Para asegurar que los restos humanos sean 
tratados con respeto y sensibilidad conforme 
a los deseos de los descendientes y las leyes 
estatales referentes a entierros, Pima County y 
el Arizona State Museum han consultado con la 
diócesis de Tucson, con grupos de descendientes 
como Los Descendientes del Presidio de Tucson, 
con las comunidades indígenas, y con otros, 
para preparar un plan para tratar y identificar 
los entierros. Los entierros encontrados en las 
excavaciónes serán repatriados al grupo de des-
cendientes apropiados o enterrados de nuevo en 
All Faiths Cemetery en Tucson. Dos acuerdos 
formales (Burial Agreements) han sido firmados 
por todos los grupos interesados. Uno de los 
acuerdos refiere a los restos humanos que se 
enterraron antes de 1775 o al establecimiento del 
Presidio de Tucson; estos restos serán repatriados 
a la Nación Tohono O’odham. El otro acuerdo 
refiere a los restos humanos enterrados en 1775 
o después, y da participación a varios grupos de 
descendientes.
	
	 Las excavaciones arqueológicas comenzarán 
este otoño, 2006.
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